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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. LAURA FEIJOO:  If everyone can please 2 

take their seats, we are going to begin.  Thank 3 

you.  Good evening, ladies and gentlemen.  My 4 

name is Laura Feijoo and I will be acting as the 5 

facilitator for this joint public hearing.  This 6 

is a joint public hearing of the Department of 7 

Education, Community Education Council, and the 8 

School Leadership Team, to discuss the proposed 9 

phase out and replacement of Bread & Roses 10 

Integrated Arts High School.  I just want to 11 

make sure in the back that people can hear me.  12 

Okay.  You don't think they--can you hear me in 13 

the back?  Could everyone please come in and sit 14 

down?  Thank you.  I'm sorry, I'm going to start 15 

again because I think the microphone may have 16 

been a little bit soft.  If everyone can please 17 

take a seat.  We're going to take a moment to 18 

make an announcement about translation services. 19 

TRANSLATOR:  [Spanish spoken] 20 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Good evening ladies 21 

and gentlemen.  My name is Laura Feijoo and I 22 

will be acting as a facilitator for this joint 23 

public hearing.  This is a joint public hearing 24 

of the Department of Education, the Community 25 
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Education Council, and the School Leadership 1 

Team, to discuss the proposed phase out and 2 

replacement of Bread & Roses Integrated Arts 3 

High School.  Tonight's proceedings will be 4 

recorded and transcribed.  Before we begin the 5 

hearing, we ask that anyone who wishes to speak 6 

during the public comment portion of the evening 7 

please sign up at the back table, which is 8 

located in the lobby when you came in.  Sign up 9 

will end promptly at 6:15.  If you have 10 

questions you want addressed during the question 11 

and answer portion of the agenda, please write 12 

that question on an index card and provide it 13 

back at the volunteer table, also in the lobby.  14 

So you can sign in as a speaker until 6:15, you 15 

can get index cards to ask questions, and those 16 

can also be provided to a staff member or at the 17 

table in the lobby of this auditorium.  Only 18 

people who have signed up to speak will be able 19 

to participate in this public comment section.  20 

So it is very important if you choose to speak 21 

or wish to speak or think you might want to 22 

speak, that you please sign up for public 23 

comment prior to 6:15 in the lobby of this 24 

auditorium.  All panel participants were asked 25 
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to be here no later than 5:30 p.m.  Now that we 1 

have started, if a panel participant arrives 2 

late, he or she will be given an opportunity to 3 

speak at the first opportune moment.  We want to 4 

be respectful of everyone's time this evening.  5 

There may also be elected officials who arrive 6 

at different times throughout the evening.  If 7 

they wish to speak, we will do our best to 8 

accommodate them at the first opportune moment.  9 

Those who are here at the start of the public 10 

comment segment will be asked to speak first.  11 

As you saw when you walked in, there is a full 12 

agenda described on posters in the lobby of the 13 

auditorium.  The format for tonight's joint 14 

public hearing will include a presentation of 15 

the proposal, a presentation by hearing 16 

participants, followed by public comment.  17 

Speakers should have already signed up at the 18 

sign in table in the lobby.  Public comments can 19 

be no longer than two minutes each.  The time 20 

will be strictly followed and speakers will be 21 

informed when their designated time to speak has 22 

come.  There will also be a question and answer 23 

period.  Members of the audience, if you have 24 

questions, please write your questions on index 25 
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cards that are supplied at the table when you 1 

arrived this evening.  While the public comments 2 

are taking place, staff members will organize 3 

the questions into categories and get them ready 4 

for the question and answer period.  Some 5 

questions will be asked directly from the index 6 

cards and others will be batched under headings 7 

to avoid repetitiveness.  Even though all 8 

individual questions will not be addressed in 9 

the forum tonight, answers to all the questions 10 

will be posted on the DOE website prior to the 11 

panel meeting.  If at the end of the hearing you 12 

still have questions, we encourage you to 13 

directly send them to us by calling the phone 14 

number on the bottom of the facts sheet or 15 

sending them to the email address also provided 16 

at the bottom of your facts sheet.  And those 17 

sheets are also available at the table where you 18 

came in.  I would like to now introduce the 19 

panel which has been assembled for this 20 

evening's joint public hearing.  Not present 21 

tonight but a seat available at the dais is for 22 

Ernest Bryant, Jr.  He is the CEC First Vice 23 

President.   Seated to my right is Anish Aaron 24 

[phonetic], CEC Secretary.  Pooja Bhaskar, 25 
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teacher and the School Leadership Team, is also 1 

here with us this evening.  Andrea Wilson, 2 

teacher, also on the school leadership Team, is 3 

here this evening.  To my right is Deputy 4 

Chancellor Dorita Gibson, Division of Equity and 5 

Access, here at the table, and she will be 6 

presiding over tonight's joint public hearing.  7 

And to my left is Anthony Lodico, Superintendent 8 

for High Schools in Manhattan and he is, 9 

obviously, also the Superintendent for this 10 

school.  I will now turn the program over to 11 

Deputy Chancellor Dorita Gibson, who will 12 

present the proposal. 13 

MS. DORITA GIBSON:  Good evening and thank 14 

you, Laura.  I would like to just start by 15 

acknowledging a few people that are in the 16 

audience.  First, I would like to start with our 17 

Principal Lofton.  Thank you, welcome.  Our 18 

Community Superintendent for District Five, Gale 19 

Reeves, is also here today.  CSA Rep, Juanita 20 

Bass--hi, Juanita.  How are you?  And our UFT, 21 

Duane Clark is here.  Welcome.  And for parents 22 

and friends of Bread & Roses.  It's not an easy 23 

task to be here today, to share news with you, 24 

and to discuss the next steps of what is going 25 
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to happen with Bread & Roses.  But I do 1 

appreciate the support.  We are here to listen 2 

to you, to really get an understanding to your 3 

feelings, and to really respond as best we can. 4 

This joint public hearing was convened to 5 

discuss the proposed phase out and replacement 6 

of Bread & Roses Integrated Arts High School.  7 

For the purpose of this meeting, we will be 8 

referring to Bread & Roses Integrated Arts High 9 

School as Bread & Roses from this point on.  10 

Additionally, there will be a second joint 11 

public hearing later this month to discuss the 12 

proposed co-location of Eagle Academy for Young 13 

Men of Harlem here in building M136.  Details 14 

regarding that hearing will be shared with this 15 

community as soon as they are available.  The 16 

decision to phase out Bread & Roses is a 17 

difficult one and we do not take this lightly.  18 

We examine many factors and data before we 19 

propose a course of action.  We engage families 20 

and community members in a discussion about what 21 

is and not working in the school before 22 

determining whether the phase out is 23 

appropriate.  All of us count on our schools to 24 

provide a high quality education to students and 25 
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we must hold all schools to the same standard 1 

of excellence, because every child in this city 2 

deserves the best possible education.  When a 3 

school isn’t serving its students well, we have 4 

to take action to ensure that the current 5 

students do not fall even further behind and 6 

that future students will have a school that 7 

prepares them for success in college and in the 8 

workplace.  I want to acknowledge the students 9 

who are here and the families who feel that 10 

their children are being well served by Bread & 11 

Roses.  Tonight, we will hear about some success 12 

stories happening here and we will honor those.  13 

But we also need to consider the other students 14 

whom the school is not serving well and who have 15 

not experienced the same success.  These 16 

students deserve better.  As I mentioned earlier 17 

tonight, we will be discussing the proposed 18 

phase out and replacement of Bread & Roses.  In 19 

addition to the proposed phase out, we are 20 

proposing to replace Bread & Roses with one new 21 

district secondary school, which will serve 22 

students in grade six through twelve.  Bread & 23 

Roses is located in Building M136 at 6 Edgecombe 24 

Avenue, New York.  It is a district high school 25 
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currently serving students in grades nine 1 

through twelve and admits students through the 2 

high school admissions process.  Bread & Roses 3 

is collocated with KAPPA IV, a district middle 4 

school serving students in grades six through 5 

eight, and Mott Hall High School, a district 6 

high school serving students in grade nine 7 

through twelve.  On January 11, 2013, the New 8 

York City Department of Education published 9 

proposals to phase out and replace Bread & Roses 10 

based on its long standing performance 11 

struggles.  The DOE anticipates publishing an 12 

amended phase out proposal and a revised 13 

replacement proposal, which would provide 14 

updated information regarding the availability 15 

of school improvement grant funds and would 16 

clarify enrollment and admission policies of the 17 

replacement school, Eagle Academy for Young Men 18 

of Harlem, and the impact on the campus.  These 19 

proposals discuss the track record of Bread & 20 

Roses and why the Department of Ed believes the 21 

phase out and replacement is the best option for 22 

the Bread & Roses community.  Bread & Roses 23 

performance data indicated that this school has 24 

struggled and confirmed the DOE's assessment 25 
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that the school lacks the capacity to improve 1 

quickly enough to meet the needs of all 2 

students.  For example, Bread & Roses earned an 3 

F on its 2011-2012 progress report, including F 4 

grades for student progress, student 5 

performance, school environment, and college and 6 

career readiness.  Moreover, Bread & Roses has a 7 

history of low performance, including an overall 8 

D on the 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 progress 9 

reports.  Graduation rates have remained below 10 

61% for the last seven years.  Bread & Roses 11 

four years graduation rate was 41% in 2012 and 12 

well below the city average, which is 65.5%.  13 

Bread & Roses was also identified by the New 14 

York State Education Department as a priority 15 

school, one of the bottom five percent of the 16 

schools in the entire state.  Given the school's 17 

continued decline in performance, the Department 18 

of Education believes that only the most serious 19 

intervention, the gradual phase out and eventual 20 

closure and replacement of Bread & Roses will 21 

address its longstanding struggles and allow for 22 

a new community school option to develop in this 23 

building that will better serve future students 24 

and the broader community.  In a separate 25 



 11 

educational impact statement, the Department 1 

of Ed has proposed to open and co-locate Eagle 2 

Academy for Young Men of Harlem, a new district 3 

secondary school in this school building.  If 4 

approved, Eagle Academy will admit male students 5 

entering into the sixth grade through the middle 6 

school choice process.  Eagle Academy will add 7 

one grade per year until it reaches full scale 8 

and serves students sixth through twelfth grade 9 

in the 2019-2020 school year.  As previously 10 

mentioned, the Department anticipates revising 11 

this proposal and holding a second joint public 12 

hearing later this month to discuss this co-13 

location proposal.  Before we move to the public 14 

comment section of this meeting, I would like to 15 

discuss the impact of the phase out proposal on 16 

the current Bread & Roses students.  If the 17 

phase out proposal is approved, Bread & Roses 18 

will no longer admit new ninth grade students 19 

after the close of the 2012-2013 school year.  20 

Bread & Roses will continue to phase out one 21 

grade at a time until June, 2016, when it will 22 

close.  Most students will be able to complete 23 

high school at Bread & Roses.  As the school 24 

becomes smaller, students will receive more 25 
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individualized attention to ensure that they 1 

are receiving the support that they need to 2 

succeed and to graduate.  Students may also 3 

apply to finish to a school elsewhere if they 4 

choose.  The new ninth grade students will have 5 

the opportunity to apply to a different high 6 

school during the round two of the high school 7 

admission process.  Other students will get an 8 

opportunity to apply or transfer to another high 9 

school as part of the public school choice 10 

process.  Applications for these transfer 11 

opportunities will be available to students this 12 

spring for enrollment starting in September.  13 

Before I end, I'd like to acknowledge our 14 

network leader, Heidi, who is here today with 15 

the Cluster Leader, Jonathan, Deputy Cluster 16 

Leader, who is also here, who has been 17 

supporting this school.  Thank you in advance 18 

for sharing your feedback on these proposals 19 

tonight.  We look forward to hearing your 20 

comments and questions.  I turn this mike over 21 

to Laura Feijoo.  Thank you. 22 

MS. FEIJOO:  I will now invite the members 23 

of the panel to present their comments in 24 

regards to tonight's' proposal.  Joining us this 25 
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evening is Ernest Bryant, Jr., CEC First Vice 1 

President, and we ask that he speaks first. 2 

MR. ERNEST BRYANT, JR.:  Good evening, 3 

everyone.  It is unfortunate that we are here at 4 

another meeting of this type, where a school is 5 

being phased out for whatever reason.  We 6 

understand that we are about quality education.  7 

But as has always been echoed, we have to assess 8 

the amount of support that is given to our local 9 

schools and the true commitment that the DOE has 10 

made to our schools.  Because it's easy to say 11 

that a school is failing and let's just phase it 12 

out, put another school in without truly 13 

evaluating the responsibility of the parent and 14 

the DOE is the parent of this school.  And we 15 

need to really assess what has the DOE done?  A 16 

comment was made that as Bread & Roses, class 17 

sizes get smaller, that students will be able to 18 

receive more hands on instruction, that's a key 19 

word.  Because we need to evaluate if class 20 

sizes are smaller then the students will be 21 

receiving that educational instruction that they 22 

need to grow.  Have the DOE really supported 23 

Bread & Roses financially to make sure  that 24 

class sizes remain small so that students can 25 
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really get hands on instruction?  Are you 1 

understanding what I'm--you said that, it was 2 

stated that as Bread & Roses phase out, the 3 

class would get smaller.  And each student would 4 

get the hands on instruction that they need.  5 

That's the key.  Evaluate the class size and by 6 

evaluating the class size, we will be able to 7 

keep Bread & Roses open.  Because now each 8 

students will receive the instructional support 9 

that they need.  The DOE, it's easy to blame a 10 

school, easy to blame staff, easy to blame 11 

parents, but the DOE have to stop and reflect on 12 

themselves.  What are you truly doing with the 13 

schools in our district?  Eagle Academy is an 14 

excellent school.  But it's one of many.  Bread 15 

& Roses, we have an excellent principal.  16 

Different schools throughout Harlem, excellent 17 

principal but not given the same support.  So 18 

you need to evaluate what you're doing for our 19 

schools.  It's easy to co-locate.  They say 20 

we're getting rid of the issue.  But I've come 21 

to learn that if everyone is complaining about 22 

the same person, then they need to check because 23 

they may be the issue.  24 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker if 25 
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Aisha Earn, CEC Secretary.  I'm sorry, did I 1 

get the name wrong?  I'm sorry.  Oh, you're 2 

going to pass. Okay.  The next speaker is Pooja 3 

Bhaskar, teacher on the School Leadership Team. 4 

MS. POOJA BHASKAR:  Good evening, everyone.  5 

Thank you for being here.  It's wonderful seeing 6 

so many people coming out to weigh in on Bread & 7 

Roses.  So I just want to introduce myself.  I 8 

am Pooja Bhaksar.  I am the first year living 9 

environments teacher at Bread & Roses.  I'm also 10 

a teacher through the New York City Teaching 11 

Fellows and I am the advisor, one of the 12 

advisors--excuse me--for the Model U.N. club.  I 13 

am representing, today, I am here representing 14 

the student leadership team.  And, as you can 15 

see, from what I have prepared, we've got a lot 16 

of things to say so you might get bored of my 17 

voice very quickly.  So I hope that I'm able to 18 

adequately represent the impassioned opinions of 19 

each of the members of the group.  So what we'd 20 

like to do is start off by talking a little bit 21 

about the history of Bread & Roses over the last 22 

three years.  Within 1.5 years, one-and-a-half 23 

years, we went from being a transformation to 24 

being a restart to a proposed turnaround school.  25 
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A new principal was to be hired and given 1 

three years to facilitate a transformation of 2 

Bread & Roses.  Moreover, the school was 3 

promised support from the network, New Vision, 4 

and the EPO, Abyssinian Schools, and the DOE 5 

through the high school superintendent.  We did 6 

not receive that resource.  During the first 7 

full year of the restart, which was September 8 

2011-2012, it took the EPO almost four months to 9 

get started and over six months for an official 10 

contract to be signed.  In addition, the EPO was 11 

not fully until February, 2012, which is almost 12 

six months after the start of the school year.  13 

Again, that's a resource that we did not 14 

receive.  New Visions was directed to give 15 

limited support for curriculum and instruction.  16 

Again, a resource that we did not receive.  The 17 

Superintendent never visited the school for the 18 

entire school year.  Support, again, that we did 19 

not receive.  We feel at the SLT that this is 20 

nothing short of an injustice.  This sends a 21 

message to our children that they and their 22 

community is a failure.  This sends a message to 23 

our children that the problems are not worth 24 

fixing and that their community is not worth 25 
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improving and that people simply do not care 1 

what happens to them.  If a student of mine--I'm 2 

a teacher--if a student of mine is not 3 

performing to standard, I don't stand over them 4 

and repeatedly yell, "Learn better."  I 5 

scaffold, I provide support, I give them a 6 

little extra time, I talk them through their 7 

confusion.  Doing anything else would be, again, 8 

an injustice and completely ineffective.  Again, 9 

we the SLT, firmly believe that Bread & Roses 10 

can be successful as an open enrollment school 11 

that takes all students and seeks to educate all 12 

students, if we have the support.  We further 13 

believe that Bread & Roses holds an important 14 

place in the Harlem community.  Many of the 15 

schools in the area won't necessarily take our 16 

kids.  But we take those kids.  We educate those 17 

kids.  We graduate those kids and we get them to 18 

pass the Regents Exams.  We don't screen 19 

students out.  We don't kick out students.  We 20 

don't label our kids bad seeds and do whatever 21 

we can to get them out of our classrooms and out 22 

of our hair until we can completely forget about 23 

them.  We take every student.  Here at Bread & 24 

Roses, we take every student.  We care for every 25 
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student.  And we believe that every student 1 

can learn.  We teach every student and we watch 2 

those students make progress.  We are building a 3 

school in which students regularly surprise 4 

their families, us, and themselves with their 5 

newfound realization that they in fact can 6 

learn.  We teach our children that they can 7 

learn.  And when they see that, they do continue 8 

to learn.  Despite the limited support, the 9 

principal beginning this school year hired over 10 

50% new staff.  This has already resulted in 11 

some major accomplishments.  One, credit 12 

accumulation increase; two, positive Regents 13 

results from the January Regents Examination; 14 

three, common planning; four, an inquiry, data 15 

driven process; and five, several new 16 

partnerships with the school, including Columbia 17 

University, Borough of Manhattan Community 18 

College, Generation Citizen, New York Road 19 

Runners, Theater Works, and many others.  I want 20 

to be very clear, I and the SLT, want it to be 21 

very clear that this is the Bread & Roses that 22 

you are seeking to phase out, a steadily 23 

improving school that is vital to our community, 24 

that, with more support, could improve even 25 
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faster.  We are turning around the school.  1 

And what we want is really simple.  We want you 2 

to not phase out Bread & Roses, stop phasing out 3 

our school, and start supporting our school.  We 4 

have already started the work this year and we 5 

want to be able to finish.  Thank you. 6 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Before I announce 7 

the next speaker, I just want to take a moment 8 

to say the registration for speaker signup has 9 

concluded.  If there is anyone else here, it 10 

would have to be right now to sign up for 11 

speaking time and then that portion of the 12 

signup for public comment has concluded.  Okay.  13 

Our next speaker at the table is Andrea Wilson, 14 

teacher on the School Leadership Team. 15 

MS. ANDREA WILSON:  I just want to say, 16 

hello, and thank you to everyone who came out to 17 

this hearing, especially my students back there 18 

in the back.  Thank you, thank you, very much.  19 

It is with a weary mind and heavy heard that I 20 

stand before you and question your decision to 21 

phase out my school, Bread & Roses.  I am a 22 

first year teacher.  I teach U.S. history and I 23 

came all the way from California to join the New 24 

York City teachers residency program for school 25 
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turnaround.  I am committed to the vision the 1 

DOE had for turning around our lowest performing 2 

schools.  It's ironic that I sit here now in 3 

this seat.  But I question your decision.  You 4 

guys have hit us with numbers, data saying that 5 

our school is failing because of test scores, 6 

attendance rates, graduation was one that stuck 7 

out to me.  But I have a question, how does the 8 

phase out model benefit our students?  At the 9 

end of the day, we are here for our students.  10 

We are here to educate them.  We are here to 11 

show them that--I'm sorry--how does the phase 12 

out model benefit students?  That's my main 13 

question.  Of the 21 schools closed between 2003 14 

and 2009, 37% of students in their final classes 15 

graduated, on average.  That's far below the 16 

Bread & Roses graduation rate.  So how will that 17 

help our students?  20% dropped out, 33% were 18 

discharged, and 10% were still left enrolled 19 

when the schools closed their doors.  How will 20 

that help our students at Bread & Roses?  Most 21 

of the schools closed in recent years and those 22 

proposed for closure this year enroll higher 23 

than average concentrations of English Language 24 

Learners, students who enter the school overage, 25 
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and/or students with disabilities.  Bread & 1 

Roses is one such school.  If you close our 2 

school and graduation rates further fail, fall 3 

down to 37%, to 20%, how will that help our 4 

school?  A 2009 study conducted by the 5 

University of Chicago found that when schools in 6 

the city were closed, most students who 7 

transferred out of closing schools re-enrolled 8 

in schools that were academically weak.  They 9 

were also failing and they soon went to phase 10 

out.  How does that help our school?  How does 11 

that help the students left at Bread & Roses?  12 

Diane Ravitch has written, "It is easy to close 13 

schools, disperse the students, and claim 14 

victory.  But no school is improved and no 15 

student is helped by closing schools."  There is 16 

evidence that school choice policies have made 17 

it possible for many schools to avoid serving 18 

the most challenging students, the students that 19 

walk through the doors at Bread & Roses.  So 20 

when you close or phase out Bread & Roses, how 21 

does that help our school?  How does that help 22 

our students?  The Deputy Chancellor said, "We 23 

expect success and after a rigorous review of 24 

academic performance, we are proposing to phase 25 
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out a select number of low performing schools.  1 

Ultimately, we know we can better serve our 2 

students and families with new options and a new 3 

start."  But your own statistics show that that 4 

is not true: 37%, 30%, 20% on average will 5 

graduate from a phase out high school.  How does 6 

that help our school?  How does that help Bread 7 

& Roses?  Thank you. 8 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  I want to thank our 9 

speakers.  And Ms. Wilson posed a number of 10 

questions that we will answer in the question 11 

and answer portion.  We have to follow a 12 

protocol, so I know she proposed a number of 13 

questions and there will be an opportunity for 14 

the Deputy Chancellor to respond to those 15 

questions.  Not only did she take notes but 16 

others did in the audience.  And as a part of 17 

the question and answer portion, we will attempt 18 

to answer the questions that were raised by Ms. 19 

Wilson.  This actually concludes our formal 20 

presentations.  But before we move on to the 21 

public comments, I'd like to offer an 22 

opportunity for the CSA and the UFT, if they 23 

have comments to make, we have with us CSA 24 

representative Juanita Bass, if she'd like to 25 
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make a comment? 1 

MS. JUANITA BASS:  Good evening, everyone.  2 

It seems like we've been in this position far 3 

too many times.  Once again, the DOE has 4 

scheduled more than two dozen schools for 5 

closure.  The latest 26 schools destined for the 6 

scrap heap don't fit into any particular 7 

pattern.  Several have new principals who were 8 

told they would have time to turn the school 9 

around.  Several have effective ratings from the 10 

state.  Several have proficient quality reviews.  11 

One actually has a principal who exceeds 12 

expectations and a quality review rating of well 13 

developed.  The DOE seems to take aim at schools 14 

as if it is playing a game of Russian roulette.  15 

This DOE worst practice often devastates 16 

children and families.  It usually takes aim at 17 

students who have already suffered setbacks and 18 

humiliations from previous closed school 19 

closings.  Bread & Roses is a case in point.  It 20 

has been stated that Bread & Roses has a history 21 

of poor performance.  If that is the case, then 22 

one would assume that the DOE has provided 23 

support to assess and address the school's 24 

needs.  Within two years, the DOE has started 25 
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but never fully developed various programs 1 

that were supposed to resolve the academic 2 

issues at Bread & Roses.  They had restart.  3 

They had transformation.  They had turnaround.  4 

And now we're going into proposed phase out.  5 

Phase out?  Has Bread & Roses failed or has the 6 

Department of Education failed?  Has the DOE 7 

failed Bread & Roses?  Think about it.  8 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you for your comments 9 

and, again, we will be recording the questions 10 

to respond to them at one time.  Mr. Clark, 11 

would you like to make any statement on behalf 12 

of the UFT?  And Mr. Diggs, I believe the school 13 

representative, you can also make a comment if 14 

you would like. 15 

MR. CLARK:  This is kind of low for me.  16 

Good evening.  Well, I'm not going to start the 17 

whole conversation off by trying to make logic 18 

out of the illogical.  I can't do that.  I'm 19 

only a person who is a proponent of resolving 20 

things that happen in a school.  So, from what I 21 

experienced in my years of dealing with Bread & 22 

Roses and the transitions and changes and ups 23 

and downs and all that they've been through over 24 

these last five years, it has been really 25 
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upsetting for me because even most recently 1 

serving as a member of the 18D committee to 2 

restaff the school, I was part of the process of 3 

some of these new members that are sitting 4 

before you.  And they were phenomenal teachers 5 

who came and interested in serving the school 6 

community, to be a part of the change with the 7 

veteran staff that was still left here.  And 8 

just when I came into the school within 9 

September to hear the energy, the vibe, the 10 

changes that was totally being discussed for the 11 

school community, they're just being cut off at 12 

their knees right now.  So all that planning, 13 

all that preparing, for what they were going to 14 

do for the future of Bread & Roses has now been 15 

nixed.  So what was all this really for?  16 

Because I already heard many a times from 17 

different speakers about the lack of support.  I 18 

don't want to get sick in front of you.  I 19 

really don't.  Because I'm very clear about the 20 

lack of support, the complaints that have been 21 

made numerous times with regards to the network, 22 

with regards to Abyssinia, with regards to the 23 

just different name changes, whether they are 24 

restart, transformation, turnaround, upside 25 
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down.  It's just absurd.  But again, it adds 1 

to what I've been saying, the logical reasoning 2 

for what's going on.  We can't keep putting out 3 

this edict that we're for children.  It's not 4 

for the words.  It's the actions.  And the 5 

actions that have been presented here have been 6 

zero from the Department of Ed.  They've 7 

provided absolutely no support to the school 8 

community to help it grow.  And that's in every 9 

vein that you've heard from all the previous 10 

speakers.  So I'm not going to beat a dead 11 

horse.  I'm just saying that I'm supporting 12 

everything that everyone has been saying because 13 

it's just really absurd.  It's unfair to the new 14 

staff that's here, the current staff that's 15 

here, the administrative staff that's here, and 16 

in particular and first and foremost, the 17 

parents and the students.  It's totally unfair. 18 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you, Mr. Clark.  So we're 19 

going to begin the public comment portion.  I'm 20 

going to ask five people, I will read the names 21 

of people who have signed up, number one through 22 

five, to please line up at the microphone.  We 23 

will adhere to the two minute limit.  And there 24 

will be someone who is a timekeeper who will 25 
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notify you when you have about 30 seconds left 1 

to go, just to wrap up and conclude your 2 

comments.  So the speakers are, number one, 3 

Jenna Tutjer--and please, I apologize if I 4 

mispronounce names--number two, Laura Morel; 5 

number three, Marlena Nadler; and number four, 6 

Janella Hinds.  Number five is Pooja Bhaskar, if 7 

you choose to make an additional comment.  8 

Number one was Jenna Tutjer. 9 

MS. JENNA TUTJER:  Good evening.  My name is 10 

Jenna Tutjer and I'm coming from Columbia 11 

University to speak on behalf of the Dean of the 12 

School of Social Worker, Dr. Jeanette Takamura.  13 

For more than 100 years the Columbia School of 14 

Social Work has been committed to developing the 15 

next generation of leaders in social work.  Now 16 

more than ever, the school is committed to 17 

improving the outcomes of the youth and families 18 

residing in Morningside and Harlem and creating 19 

innovative opportunities to engage these 20 

communities.  The achievement initiative at the 21 

School of Social Work is one such opportunity 22 

that was recently created with the purpose of 23 

implementing a comprehensive student/family 24 

support program here at Bread & Roses.  We 25 
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believe that Bread & Roses has incredible 1 

potential to change the educational outcomes of 2 

its students.  When selecting a high school to 3 

create this unique partnership with, we asked 4 

fellow principals and leaders in the community 5 

for suggestions of a high school that would 6 

benefit from our partnership.  Bread & Roses was 7 

suggested by every leader we spoke to.  First, 8 

it has a relatively new principal, Dr. Lofton, 9 

who is a strong leader committed to improving 10 

the educational outcomes of its students and 11 

demanding the very best from his staff.  Second, 12 

Dr. Lofton has hired many new teachers this 13 

academic year to ensure that he has the most 14 

effective and transformative teachers in this 15 

building that can motivate, engage, and educate 16 

every student at Bread & Roses. Third, while the 17 

school certainly faces challenges, the necessary 18 

supports are now in place to address those 19 

challenges.  Students feel safe here and are 20 

beginning to feel that the adults in the 21 

building truly care about their wellbeing.  That 22 

is the basis on which all improvements can be 23 

made.  For these reasons, we select Bread & 24 

Roses as our only partner. We are committed to 25 
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providing the following opportunities to 1 

students and their families.  We will provide 2 

full time, licensed staff who are on site at 3 

Bread & Roses every day during the week, a 4 

number of faculty not only at the School of 5 

Social Work but also at Columbia and Teacher's 6 

College have expressed a strong desire to 7 

partner with us to support the work we planned 8 

at Bread & Roses.  The School of Social Work has 9 

graduate interns here on site, three days a 10 

week, that are following the curriculum that 11 

they learn in class.  And finally, our program 12 

interventions of counseling, tutoring, 13 

mentoring, college and career preparation, are 14 

based on the latest research and interventions 15 

that have proven effective with populations 16 

similar to those at Bread & Roses.  We just 17 

began our partnership with Bread & Roses three 18 

weeks ago.  All we ask for is the time to 19 

demonstrate results.  There is incredible 20 

potential here.  We are committed to Bread & 21 

Roses.  We are committed to these students.  22 

This is the only school that we are partnering 23 

with.  We hope to have the time to demonstrate 24 

results.  Thank you. 25 
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MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker 1 

is Laura Morel. 2 

MS. LAURA MOREL:  Good evening.  I am a 3 

ninth grade English teacher.  This is my first 4 

year at Bread & Roses.  We keep talking about 5 

how it would be an injustice to our students to 6 

close the school and we wanted to give them a 7 

chance to make sure their voices were heard, so 8 

we posed the question, "Why should Bread & Roses 9 

remain open?"  And I want to share with you some 10 

of their responses.  "Bread & Roses should 11 

remain open because everyone is already family 12 

here.  Everyone is used to the teachers and the 13 

students in this school and the teachers make 14 

everything easier to understand and cope with.  15 

Every day, we always get a good morning from the 16 

teachers.  They talk to us like we were their 17 

own and it really shows us how much they care.  18 

This school is our home.  These people are our 19 

family.  If you close it, then we might not ever 20 

see them again.  The school should remain open.  21 

I strongly believe that Bread & Roses should 22 

stay open."  "This school shouldn't close 23 

because of this freshman class that will change 24 

the future of this school's grade.  For example, 25 
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this year's freshman class has a much better 1 

grade point average than the other grades.  In 2 

conclusion, the future of this freshman class 3 

will hopefully change the future of this 4 

school."  "Bread & Roses should stay open 5 

because starting this year, we have taken a turn 6 

for the better.  We are doing better and I am 7 

trying here.  I am happy here.  Someone asked me 8 

if switching schools because this one is being 9 

closed and I said I would give my word that I 10 

will do my best and won't give up on Bread & 11 

Roses.  Bread & Roses has potential and I am 12 

proof."  "Bread & Roses should remain open 13 

because the teachers are good and all of my 14 

grades are increasing.  The teachers take time 15 

out of their lunch to help you understand what 16 

you are learning.  My grades have improved from 17 

eighth grade where I was averaging 75.  Now I 18 

have an 85.  In social studies, my teachers come 19 

to me individually and explain if you don't 20 

understand.  And it's like that in all of the 21 

classes.  The teachers care about your grades.  22 

They give you extra work to help you.  This is 23 

why I believe Bread & Roses should remain open, 24 

for its good teachers and understanding the 25 
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kids."  Thank you. 1 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker is 2 

Marlena Nadler. 3 

MS. MARLENA NADLER:  Hi, I'm also one of the 4 

new staff members here and we just need time to 5 

make our partnership with Bread & Roses 6 

successful.   I'm also going to share with you 7 

what some of my students had to say.  About his 8 

grades, one of my students said, "The grades 9 

picked up," and then, "I love the school and the 10 

teachers are so respectful to me and 11 

supportive."  Another student said, "If this 12 

school closes, most kids will be stuck here and 13 

will not be able to leave because of their 14 

grades.  It should stay open for the sake of the 15 

freshman class.  If the school closes, students 16 

will be more stressed and this will affect their 17 

education.  Teachers will be fired and failing 18 

grades will come.  The teachers that are close 19 

to us will leave and bring confidence down even 20 

more."  "Teachers here are telling students and 21 

they care and that is why I want to come to 22 

ninth period."  Ninth period is the period in 23 

which we tutor our students and we recruit them 24 

to come.  They all have been coming and it has 25 
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been very effective.  Thank you. 1 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker is 2 

Janella Hinds. 3 

MS. JANELLA HINDS:  My name is Janella 4 

Hinds.  I'm Vice President of Academic High 5 

Schools for the United Federation of Teachers.  6 

And I come here tonight in strong opposition to 7 

this proposal for the closure of Bread & Roses 8 

High School.  I've been working with this high 9 

school for quite some time.  And this is a 10 

school that has suffered under repeated changes 11 

in leadership, repeated lack of support, 12 

repeated lack of engagement by those who are 13 

supposed to support a school community and make 14 

sure that the educators and the students in that 15 

building have what they need to be successful.  16 

That has not happened here.  In addition, over 17 

the last four years, the population at Bread & 18 

Roses has changed so that more students with 19 

greater needs are coming to this school.  And as 20 

you've heard, these educators, with open arms, 21 

are working with and supporting and encouraging 22 

every child that they educate.  But the 23 

concentration has shifted.  And we have to be 24 

realistic about the effects of a shifted 25 
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concentration on a school community.  It makes 1 

it much more difficult to be successful.  And 2 

even with more students who are requiring 3 

special services, even with higher numbers of 4 

students who are in self-contained classes, this 5 

school community has identified successful 6 

partnerships.  This school community has 7 

identified and created the kinds of programs 8 

that will lead to the success of this school.  9 

This school community has worked together to 10 

identify a strong staff and an inspired student 11 

body who are ready to do the work.  They need 12 

the opportunity to do the work.  It's too easy 13 

to close the doors and say, "Let's start 14 

something new."  Do the work, support Bread & 15 

Roses, and keep Bread & Roses open this year. 16 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Speaker number 17 

five, Pooja Bhaskar. 18 

MS. BHASKAR:  I'm here to share more student 19 

voices for the response, "Why should Bread & 20 

Roses remain open?"  This is from one of my 21 

students: "Bread & Roses should remain open 22 

because of the teachers.  In other words, 23 

teachers in Bread & Roses are trying to change 24 

the school.  Students of Bread & Roses, grades 25 
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have changed due to the teachers that are 1 

trying to make a difference."  And he wrote 2 

about himself here, "Jamar has seen a difference 3 

in his grades.  He passed every class for the 4 

first time in his life."  Yay, Jamar!  This is 5 

from another student: "I think Bread & Roses 6 

should remain open.  I really like this school 7 

because of all the teachers and how they treat 8 

us equally.  For example, all the teachers treat 9 

us equally by caring about our education and by 10 

working with each student individually."  That 11 

was his evidence.  This evidence proves his 12 

claim because, "students are learning.  13 

Therefore, the school should remain open because 14 

students are learning."  "I think Bread & 15 

Roses"--another student--"should stay open.  By 16 

this I mean Bread & Roses should remain open to 17 

help students with needs and to show them that 18 

Bread & Roses is a good school.  For example, if 19 

you close Bread & Roses High School, people will 20 

be missing out on good teachers and students.  21 

This evidence shows why Bread & Roses should 22 

remain open, because smart students would miss 23 

out on good teachers and staff."  "Bread & Roses 24 

is not as bad as everyone says it is.  Bread & 25 
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Roses is a good school and helped me grow to 1 

learn many things.  Before I came here, I was 2 

trying to transfer out because I didn't want to 3 

be here.  I thought it would be really bad.  But 4 

the school turned out to be a good school and 5 

I'm pretty sure a lot of other students think 6 

this too." "Bread & Roses should remain open.  7 

By this I mean that the Department of Education 8 

shouldn't close down the school.  I spent most 9 

of my money on my uniform and it's a struggle 10 

because I barely have any money left.  Also, 11 

this school is one out of the two schools that 12 

accepted me here.  This school should not close 13 

down because people like me have money problems 14 

and can't afford new uniforms.  Also, my grades 15 

are as high and--our grades are higher and I 16 

don't know that many schools that I want would 17 

accept me.  Bread & Roses should remain open 18 

because it has very good teachers and nice 19 

people.  I have a very good grade.  My average 20 

is an 88 in all of my classes added up.  Bread & 21 

Roses has very good grades from the teenagers in 22 

the school."  Thank you. 23 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  I will ask the next 24 

set of speakers to please line up.  Number six, 25 
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Brian Jones; number seven, Nicole Petty; 1 

number eight, Nicholas Barkley; number nine, 2 

Peter Lawrence--I could have that last name, 3 

Lamford?  And number ten is Ms. Juanita Bass if 4 

you choose to make another comment.  Okay, so 5 

we'll ask number 11, Mr. James Pierini, to 6 

please line up as well then.  Thank you.  7 

Speaker number six, Brian Jones. 8 

MR. BRIAN JONES:  I was, hello, whoa.  9 

Hello, my name is Brian Jones.  I am a teacher 10 

and a member of the group, the movement of rank 11 

and file educators.  We came here, you see us in 12 

the back, to support Bread & Roses, like we're 13 

supporting many schools that are on the closing 14 

list right now.  When I look at, I was handed 15 

some of these slips too from students.  This one 16 

says, "Teachers give up their lunch time and 17 

allow students to finish work so they can get 18 

more understanding of their work.  Bread & Roses 19 

should remain open because there are still many 20 

opportunities at Bread & Roses for the students 21 

to grow and change.  There are still 22 

opportunities at Bread & Roses for students to 23 

grow and change."  Department of Education, you 24 

are in the education business.  This is not 25 
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McDonalds.  This is not a franchise you just 1 

open or close based on the data.  These are 2 

human beings.  As an educator, you should know 3 

that you have to have a strengths based 4 

assessment of where people are at.  The 5 

Department of Education hands out Cs and Ds and 6 

Fs on a curve.  They know every single year that 7 

there will be 25% of the schools labeled C, 7% 8 

will be labeled D, and 3% will be labeled F.  So 9 

actually no matter how hard you try, there still 10 

will be certain percentages that are labeled 11 

failures.  If we did that in the classroom, we'd 12 

be run out.  If we said that 3% of our students 13 

every year were going to fail, we'd be run out.  14 

And rightfully so.  And rightfully so, because 15 

we have to look at our most struggling students 16 

and says, "What are their strengths?  What can 17 

we do to turn this around?"  As long as one 18 

student here thinks that there are opportunities 19 

to grow and change, as long as there are 20 

teachers here who think there are opportunities 21 

to grow and change, how dare you decide to close 22 

it down, that it can't grow and change?  Why are 23 

we here at another hearing?  Another year of 24 

hearings where we know we won't be heard?  Why 25 
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are we doing this again?  Why didn't this 1 

conversation happen way back at the beginning 2 

where the teachers and parents and students 3 

could sit down and say, "Here is what we need," 4 

and then you give it to them.  Why is it that we 5 

have to come here and protest and raise our 6 

voices and make signs like we see in the back in 7 

order to try and get the message through to the 8 

Department of Education?  The one teacher said 9 

this is an injustice.  I would go a step 10 

further.  This is like a public execution.  11 

That's what this is and it has to stop.  Thank 12 

you. 13 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  I just, before you 14 

start, I just want to pay attention to the signs 15 

in the front because we do have to stick to our 16 

two minute time frame.  Our next speaker is 17 

supposed to be Nicole Petty and I'm guess that's 18 

not you.  She's not here.  We'll come back to 19 

that name but you're Nicholas Barkley?  Thank 20 

you. 21 

MR. NICHOLAS BARKLEY:  All right, so I'm 22 

Nicholas Barkley.  I'm one of the New York City 23 

teaching residents.  This is my residency year 24 

here in Bread & Roses.  I'm also the co-advisor 25 
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with Ms. Bhaskar of the Model U.N. team.  On 1 

February 2, we took six of our students to a 2 

Model U.N. conference at CCNY to compete against 3 

such schools as Eleanor Roosevelt High School, 4 

Townsend Harris High School, Brooklyn Technical 5 

High School, Bronx Science, New York City Lab 6 

School.  These are some of the best schools in 7 

New York City.  And that's the level that are 8 

students are aspiring to be on.  Those are their 9 

goals.  That is where they see themselves.  They 10 

see themselves as the equals to students in 11 

those schools.  We went there and we competed 12 

and our students grew so much just in one day at 13 

that conference.  We've seen that, we've seen 14 

those results come back into our classroom.  15 

Since that time, February 2, our club has 16 

doubled in size, doubled in size.  It's been 11 17 

days.  Give us more time, what could happen from 18 

there.  I want to read a few of these responses 19 

from our students.  "I think Bread & Roses 20 

should remain open because even though the 21 

school may have a bad grade and bad attendance, 22 

the teachers and students are working hard to 23 

get the school back on top.  I have seen 24 

students keep track of their grades and making 25 
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sure they are passing all of their classes to 1 

get their credits.  I really think Bread & Roses 2 

should get another chance to improve, because I 3 

think they can do it."  "Bread & Roses should 4 

remain open to get a passing grade and get 5 

better because they have new teachers and 6 

freshmen who are progressing to become a better 7 

school.  Their passing rate was at 55% but now 8 

it is rising due to passing classes and earning 9 

credits.  Bread & Roses is becoming a better 10 

school so don't close it down just because of a 11 

failing grade." 12 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker is 13 

Peter, and I'm going to ask you to say your last 14 

name because I clearly didn't get it. 15 

MR. PETER LAMPHIER:  Lamphier [phonetic]. 16 

MS. FEIJOO:  Lamphier.  Thank you. 17 

MR. LAMPHIER:  I'm also here with the 18 

movement of rank and file educators.  And I'm 19 

going to read a statement, because teachers have 20 

given more statements.  But something to say is, 21 

every year it seems like Bloomberg and the DOE 22 

pick from a menu.  Which schools should we close 23 

this year?  Every year it's the same story.  Why 24 

is that even an option?  Why are we having 25 
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discussions about which schools to close?  1 

It's not a recipe for creating improving 2 

schools.  It's actually a recipe for creating 3 

chaos in the school system.  We should not be 4 

talking about closing schools.  We should be 5 

talking about supporting schools.  What are the 6 

things that could be done to support schools?  7 

Lowering class sizes.  Study after study show 8 

that lowering class sizes improves schools.  Why 9 

is it that Bloomberg and the DOE will not 10 

consider that?  It costs more money.  They don't 11 

want to do things that cost more money and would 12 

actually improve the schools.  What's the 13 

ultimate goal? I think we need to think about 14 

this.  It's to privatize the schools.  We close 15 

down schools, we set up charter schools.  We set 16 

up selective schools.  Schools in which all 17 

children cannot go to.  It's an attack on the 18 

entire public education system and we need to 19 

stand up and fight together against that attack.  20 

And I wanted to read one statement.  "Bread & 21 

Roses should not shut down because the school is 22 

not a bad school.  If the DOE shuts down schools 23 

because of kids failing, I think it is just 24 

unfair.  It's like you're giving up on a school 25 



 43 

and more importantly, giving up on the 1 

student.  For example, if Bread & Roses High 2 

School is a failing school with some failing 3 

students, I think that the last thing that they 4 

need is for the DOE to shut them down.  Give 5 

them a chance.   6 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Our next speaker is 7 

James Pierini. 8 

MR. JAMES PIERINI:  Hi, I'm a social 9 

studies--I'm also part of the New York City 10 

Teaching Residency.  I'm a graduate of that 11 

program.  And there are about seven of us who 12 

have come specifically to this school to work on 13 

turning it around.  And there are a whole new 14 

set of staff here committed to this cause of 15 

turning the school around.  We've just gotten 16 

started.  I can tell you from the beginning of 17 

the year to where we are at now, I have noticed 18 

a huge difference in the classroom, in the 19 

academic performance of my students over the 20 

past six months.  Some comments that I'd like to 21 

share from my students.  "I think that Bread & 22 

Roses Integrated High School should not close 23 

because it's good.  It's not excellent, but it's 24 

good.  There are good teachers that have a way 25 
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of teaching that everybody can understand."  1 

"Bread & Roses should remain open.  If the High 2 

School closes, teachers who are close with 3 

students will be let go and students' confidence 4 

will drop, causing grades to drop with their 5 

confidence.  I thought they were trying to help 6 

students, not hurt them in education."  And this 7 

particular student actually transferred.  This 8 

is what he had to say about transferring away: 9 

"Last year in ninth grade, I applied to switch 10 

schools.  When I got to the other school, I 11 

realized how good Bread & Roses was and I went 12 

through a lot to come back.  I hope I came back 13 

for a reason."  Thank you. 14 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  I will offer 15 

speaker number seven, Nicole Petty, and 16 

opportunity to please line up if she chooses to 17 

make comments.  Speaker number 12, Andrea 18 

Wilson.  I don't, do you want to take an 19 

additional time?  It's up to you.  Number 13, 20 

Rokhaya Wade, may come up and speak; number 14, 21 

Trayvan [phonetic] Bell; number 15, Michael 22 

Allen; and number 16, Jackie Rowe Adams.  If 23 

those people can please come to the microphone 24 

and line up to make public comments.  I 25 
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apologize, I'm going to ask you to introduce 1 

yourself just because we don't have an order.  2 

Thank you.   3 

MR. TRAYVAN BELL:  Good evening, good 4 

evening.  My name is Trayvan Bell.  I'm a senior 5 

here at Bread & Roses.  I just want to say that 6 

before I came to Bread & Roses, I didn't think 7 

about college.  I didn't think I could make it.  8 

And the teachers here showed me how to do the 9 

work and make it more easier.  And after school 10 

every day, these teachers stay with me and we 11 

work on college applications.  Right now I'm 12 

doing my personal statement and I'm learning how 13 

to express my feelings.  And that's thanks to 14 

these teachers that's here.  They wonderful.  I 15 

learn more from these teachers.  Ms. Wilson, Mr. 16 

Smith, Mr. Jones, they stay at lunch time, after 17 

school with me.  And I wouldn't ask for no other 18 

teachers right now.  They perfect for me.  And I 19 

just want to say thank you.   20 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you very much.  I'm going 21 

to ask you to introduce yourself, please. 22 

MS. ROKHAYA WADE:  My name is Rokhaya Wade.  23 

I'm a student in Bread & Roses.  And I'm in 24 

ninth grade.  I come here in September and I did 25 



 46 

not even know any English.  They really helped 1 

me.  This is why I did not want this school to 2 

close.  This school help people who don't 3 

understand English.  The first school I went to 4 

in the city, they have refuse me because I 5 

didn't speak English.  However, Bread & Roses 6 

did not refuse me.  Instead, they took me.  7 

Thank you. 8 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you very much.  Thank 9 

you. 10 

MS. JACKIE ROWE ADAMS:  That was just 11 

excellent, just excellent.  I'm just, you know, 12 

kind of emotional.  I'm Jackie Rowe Adams and I 13 

used to be the School Board President of School 14 

Board District Five.  And I stand here before 15 

you to say, it has totally changed.  And what I 16 

stand here to say this evening, I'm glad I came.  17 

But first let me thank Ms. White, did a yeoman's 18 

job of really, really getting the message out.  19 

And Brother Ali, the whole leadership team.  It 20 

is important when you have a team such as them 21 

and a team of teachers and principals that have 22 

spoke here tonight and constantly working with 23 

our kids.  I know it's limited time and I'm 24 

sorry because there is just so much to say.  But 25 
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I stand here to say not only talking about 1 

school board district five as president, but I 2 

am also the cofounder of Harlem Mother Save, a 3 

mother who lost two kids to gun violence.  And 4 

these schools play a big part in that.  When you 5 

talk about team and family, this is a family.  6 

This is a family and this room should be packed.  7 

This room should be packed, parents.  This room 8 

should be packed.  But let me say this, it is a 9 

design, it's designed for us not to have public 10 

schools.  Though it's nothing we can really do 11 

now besides what we doing, saying, "Stop closing 12 

these schools."  I got to affairs and I was just 13 

at an affair and they said, two people said to 14 

me that really know, "Jackie, I heard you were 15 

going to the hearing.  You're wasting your time 16 

because it's a done deal."  They know it's a 17 

done deal.  They know it's a done deal.  And I 18 

said, "No, we not wasting our time because we 19 

need to start marching.  We need to start 20 

rallying and instead of a million moms for gun 21 

control, we need to have a million moms and pops 22 

lined up out there for stop closing these 23 

schools, million moms and pops for stop closing 24 

these schools.  Enough is enough.   25 
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MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  I am just going 1 

to offer again an opportunity for Nicole Petty 2 

if she is here, Michael Allen, Anthony Klug, and 3 

Errol Smith are our remaining speakers for this 4 

evening, if you could please line up.  And I’m 5 

going to ask that you please introduce 6 

yourselves since we lost our order. 7 

MR. MICHAEL ALLEN:  Well, I'm Michael Allen 8 

and good evening all. 9 

MS. FEIJOO:  Good evening. 10 

MR. ALLEN:  Ma'am and the other speakers, 11 

that was very powerful.  We are here today and 12 

requesting that we continue to keep Bread & 13 

Roses open.  As Bread & Roses fades, as you say, 14 

the classes will become smaller.  Of course 15 

there will be, because there will be no students 16 

here.  If you keep the schools open and shorten 17 

the classes before you try to phase them out, 18 

then the kids will learn.  But if you keep the 19 

doors open of Bread & Roses, if you keep the 20 

doors of Bread & Roses open and allow the 21 

children to spread their wings, open their 22 

minds, and embrace the leadership before them, 23 

they will thrive for success.  Now, I ask you, 24 

do you understand, Mr. Earnest, Jr., and the 25 
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panel here, we need Bread & Roses to remain 1 

open so our children here can get the education 2 

that they deserve.  Have a good evening and God 3 

bless you all. 4 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Anthony Klug?  Did 5 

I get you--? 6 

MR. SHILOH KLUG:  My name is Shiloh Klug.  I 7 

didn't really sign up.  I've got something to 8 

say though. 9 

MS. FEIJOO: I'm sorry, we closed the panel.  10 

I apologize.    11 

MR. ANTHONY KLUG:  I'm Anthony Klug.  I 12 

don't mind letting the young man-- 13 

MS. FEIJOO:  No, You can speak on his behalf 14 

but I can't do replacements.  Just let me 15 

explain.  Let me just explain, I'm sorry.  16 

Because this is a public hearing--I understand--17 

because this is a public hearing I have to 18 

follow the protocol.  Mr. Klug, if you please 19 

come.  It's your opportunity to speak.   20 

MR. ANTHONY KLUG:  Can you please, 21 

respectfully, can you let these young students 22 

speak? 23 

MS. FEIJOO:  If you're at the microphone and 24 

he takes an opportunity to-- 25 
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MR. SHILOH KLUG:  Let me be number ten. 1 

MS. FEIJOO:  It's not the number ten. 2 

MR. SHILOH KLUG:  Look Miss, look, look, 3 

Miss. 4 

MS. FEIJOO:  Number ten has participated. 5 

MR. KLUG:  Look, Miss.  I came to the school 6 

four years ago, Miss. 7 

MS. FEIJOO:  I understand. 8 

MR. KLUG:  I was in and out of jail.  I 9 

ain't really think about high school, school 10 

work.  That wasn't me.  But like when I got 11 

here, I met Mr. Ali, Mr. Jones, Ms. Cox, and 12 

everybody.  Like the environment just changed my 13 

whole thought of life.  Like, I just passed my 14 

Regents.  I got an 85 thanks to Ms. Wilson.  15 

When I used to go home every day, like, I used 16 

to see sadness in my mom's eyes.   She wasn't 17 

happy with me. But now when I go home, I about 18 

to graduate this year and she loves me.  She 19 

shows me more love and she's happy with me like.  20 

I'm doing something with my life thanks to Bread 21 

& Roses.  That's all I got to say. 22 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.   23 

MR. KAMEL MONTGOMERY:  Miss, my name is 24 

Kamel Montgomery.  And I came, I'm a transfer 25 
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student in from Virginia.  It's a totally 1 

different atmosphere up here. In Virginia, it's 2 

all about yourself.  In Virginia, if you don't 3 

get the work, you don't get the work.  But up 4 

here at Bread & Roses, if you don't get the work 5 

they got teachers staying after.  It's not like 6 

we're just saying this to say it.  The teachers 7 

really stay after.  They really help you.  They 8 

really sit down with you and make sure, like, if 9 

you're not doing something right, like.  Even if 10 

out of the class, they help you.   It's just a 11 

better environment.  Everybody is just here to, 12 

for one goal and the goal is like to keep the 13 

school open and keep this Bread & Roses thing 14 

going, man.  And that's it.  Thank you.   15 

MR. BRADLEY GARCIA:  I'm taking Nicole, 16 

Nicole something's place. 17 

MS. FEIJOO:  It's okay.  I just ask that you 18 

keep your comments brief. 19 

MR. GARCIA:  I'm Bradley Garcia.   20 

MS. FEIJOO:  I won't cut you off. 21 

MR. GARCIA:  I came from a very unstructured 22 

environment when I first came as a freshman to 23 

this school.  As I was in Bread & Roses, it 24 

built me to become a better young man.  And now, 25 
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I'm graduating also.  I'm a senior.  I came in 1 

this school with about some, what, less than 10 2 

credits.  And now I'm up to par in all my 3 

classes.  I passed all my classes, passed all my 4 

Regents and everything.  I like to thank all the 5 

teachers, the Principals, the APs, or whatever.  6 

I just hope ya'll don't close this school down.  7 

I would like to send my little brother here and 8 

everything like.  This is a big support, this 9 

building is a very big support.   10 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Mr. Errol Smith? 11 

MR. ERROL SMITH:  Yes.  I'm Mr. Smith.  I 12 

have a child that's a sophomore here and this is 13 

actually his third school he's been through 14 

since he's been in high school.  And he's been 15 

at other schools that were allegedly good 16 

schools.  He's been in a private school.  And 17 

since he's been here, he's pulling straight As 18 

right now, which is the highest he's done.  You 19 

know?  So, and I mean, I've come here and I've 20 

heard a lot of bad things about this school.  21 

And, you know, one of the staff members spoke to 22 

me about bringing my son here--that's not what I 23 

wanted to do.  You know, I've heard a lot of bad 24 

things.  But since I've been here, every single 25 



 53 

teacher and staff member I've met here has 1 

been very friendly and helpful, even more so 2 

that the school that he started his freshman 3 

year at where we were paying, you know, tuition.  4 

It seems like those teachers were just there to, 5 

you know, your child is a number.  Get the work 6 

done or don’t.  We really don't care.  And every 7 

staff member here, you know, goes out of their 8 

way to help the kids.  You know, and I'm a 9 

coach.  I know a lot of kids in the 10 

neighborhood.  One of the biggest things, or 11 

also, distance.  You know, he had to travel to 12 

school and got in a lot of trouble going to or 13 

from school in neighborhoods he's not familiar 14 

with.  You know, and since he's been here, I 15 

mean, everything has been damned near perfect.  16 

You know?  And like the kids that were just 17 

before me, I know them.  I know other kids who 18 

I've seen a big change in them since they've 19 

been in this school.  So, again, I think it 20 

would be a big injustice to close this school 21 

down.  Thank you. 22 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  Mr. Klug?  I don't 23 

want you to give up your speaking time, because 24 

clearly, the kids--    25 
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MR. KLUG:  [Interposing] Yeah, and 1 

actually I sincerely want to thank you for 2 

allowing the parents and the students to speak.  3 

That was completely appropriate, so thank you.  4 

My name is Anthony Klug.  I'm actually a teacher 5 

at the Wadley Secondary School for the 6 

Performing and Visual Arts in Harlem.  We were 7 

threatened with closure last year and this year 8 

we're working as hard as we can, doing the best 9 

we can to improve.  I would like to personally 10 

thank Mr. Lodico, our new Superintendent, for 11 

assisting us with that improvement as he will, 12 

hopefully, with this school.  When the, when my 13 

brother said this isn't a chain, I think we 14 

really need to understand and unpack what that 15 

means.  In my classroom with my students, they 16 

understand the free market world very well.  17 

They understand what creative destruction can 18 

mean, okay?  But I want everyone in this room to 19 

be clear that no one in this room has a monopoly 20 

on excellence.  Okay?  Every person is warm, red 21 

blooded.  Everyone wants the best for our 22 

children.  I think we would all as soon die as 23 

not have the best for our children.  The problem 24 

is, like this city, like this country, like this 25 
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school, it is an institution.  Okay?  Luckily 1 

for me, I am of an institution, this country, 2 

that wasn't 163 years ago.  Luckily, I'm a part 3 

of an institution that has grown, that has 4 

improved, that has changed.  Obviously, you 5 

can't shut down a country.  Obviously, you can't 6 

shut down a city.  For this same reason you 7 

cannot shut down a school.  So my question is 8 

this.  If you are a concerned person in this 9 

room--and I don't have a child but when I do, my 10 

question is not is the school that they're going 11 

to excellent.  Because I know the kind people at 12 

the DOE that we've entrusted you with are doing 13 

the best you can to improve our schools.  My 14 

question is this, if my school, like my country, 15 

like my city, has a challenge, if they have an 16 

issue, what is going to be done?  Are you going 17 

to close it?  Or are you going to ensure that it 18 

is fixed?  Okay, there are no easy solutions and 19 

I know it's difficult.  And believe me, it is 20 

difficult.  The DOE itself has said that trust 21 

is the most important ingredient right now for 22 

us to ensure that we have the rigor, the 23 

excellence, the performance that our students 24 

need to create.  So I just kindly ask you, let's 25 
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work together, let's rebuild the trust, and 1 

make sure this school is the best it can be now 2 

and in the future.  Thank you. 3 

MS. FEIJOO:  Thank you.  So just a last 4 

opportunity for Nicole Petty before we close 5 

public comment?  We will now begin the question 6 

and answer period.  Remember, there will be some 7 

individual questions and others that have been 8 

bucketed into categories.  In addition, some 9 

staff members have taken notes on questions 10 

posed during the public comment that we will try 11 

to answer tonight.  Any question that is not 12 

answered here tonight will be answered on the 13 

website.  We are also videotaping and recording 14 

this session for that purpose.  If you have any 15 

additional questions at the conclusion of 16 

tonight's proceedings, we ask you to ask them 17 

either by telephone or by email.  Both of those, 18 

the phone number and the email address, is at 19 

the bottom of your facts sheet.  I will turn 20 

this back over to Deputy Chancellor Dorita 21 

Gibson, who will respond to your questions.  22 

Thank you.        23 

MS. GIBSON:  Thank you for your comments, 24 

everyone, tonight, particularly from the 25 
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youngsters from the school that spoke, from 1 

the ninth graders to the graduates, hopefully to 2 

graduate in June.  Thank you for speaking out.  3 

And the voices from the students, it was just a 4 

nice way to share what is happening in the 5 

school.  You know, I said this is not easy.  6 

This is not an easy decision to make.  And 7 

although there is just one question, it really 8 

is a question that everybody has been asking 9 

tonight and the question is really why.  And 10 

there is no good answer.  It's hard.  You know, 11 

it's difficult because everyone here has a 12 

vested interest and your heart is in this 13 

school.  I commend the new teachers that have 14 

come forth this past year.  I'm quite impressed 15 

with what you say and the work that you are 16 

doing in the school and the work that Principal 17 

Lofton is doing.  It is very difficult and it is 18 

not an easy decision that one has to make.  We 19 

at the Department, when you have to come before 20 

a group of people in a school community and say 21 

that things aren't as they should be in some 22 

areas, and in many areas.  There will be a panel 23 

vote on March 11, a decision will be made.  We 24 

will take into consideration everything that you 25 
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have said tonight.  There will be questions 1 

posted and answers will be read.  But I do want 2 

to answer some of the questions with one 3 

particular question that is big and it is 4 

lurching.  Why are you closing Bread & Roses?  5 

We understand that this is a difficult decision 6 

and we don't take it lightly here.  All students 7 

deserve access to a high quality education.  8 

While some are doing well, there are others who 9 

are not doing as well and we have to answer to 10 

that too.  We are accountable for everyone.  11 

Bread & Roses has struggled for years.  This 12 

year, the graduation rate is 41%, which is below 13 

the citywide average of 65.5%.  We expect better 14 

outcomes from our students.  Eagle Academy, 15 

which is hopefully to be here, has three other 16 

schools in New York City.  And as our CEC member 17 

said that he has also heard of Eagle Academy and 18 

they do have good outcomes.  One is in the Bronx 19 

and they had a graduation rate of 73% this past 20 

year.  This is a school that had its first 21 

graduation rate.  We expect that Eagle Academy 22 

will be a strong option for this community.  23 

This is the only question that we have that was 24 

written.  And with that, I have to say thank you 25 
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for coming and I'll turn the microphone over 1 

to Dr. Feijoo.   2 

MS. FEIJOO:  We have heard significant 3 

comments this evening.  We do appreciate your 4 

feedback for the hearing.  The information will 5 

be posted and shared with the panel for 6 

educational policy, which will have its hearing 7 

vote at the public presentation on March 11, 8 

2013, at Brooklyn Technical High School, located 9 

at 29 Fort Green Place in Brooklyn.  Public 10 

comments can also be submitted until March 10 at 11 

12:00 a.m.  You may submit your feedback via 12 

phone at the phone number or the email address 13 

located at the bottom of the facts sheet.  Thank 14 

you all for coming.  This joint public hearing 15 

is officially adjourned.  Thank you.       16 

[END RECORDING] 17 
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